From: Orta, Julie (CDC/CCID/NCIRD) 
Sent: Tuesday, May 06, 2008 8:49 PM
To: NCIRD Immunization Grantee Mailbox (CDC)
Cc: Orta, Julie (CDC/CCID/NCIRD)
Subject: procedure to transfer virtual inventory doses to another grantee’s virtual inventory, transitioned grantees only, Level 3
Dear transitioned grantees,
As you may know, DT, HBIG, and all other vaccines/biologicals that do not exist on the federal contract are stored as grantee-specific inventory at the McKesson warehouses.  When you purchase these vaccines with state and/or 317 FA funds to be shipped to McKesson Specialty Distribution, these products are physically segregated in grantee-specific bins as "virtual inventory." 
You must monitor your virtual inventory and the expiration dates. Please rely on the data warehouse-generated Grantee-Specific Inventory Report for this information. 
Occasionally, grantees place unusually large bulk orders of DT to be shipped to McKesson. In addition, one grantee has seven doses of HBIG in its virtual inventory with an expiration date of 9/16/08. We are concerned that these situations may result in some doses expiring before they can be administered. 
In an effort to prevent wastage, we encourage you to try to transfer doses from your virtual inventory into another grantee’s virtual inventory if you think that you will not be able to use the vaccine before it expires. The procedure is as follows:
· You send an email to your POB project officer with the following information: 

· Grantee name 

· Your contact information 

· Description of virtual inventory you would like to donate/trade to another transitioned grantee, including 

· Name of product(s) 

· Manufacturer 

· NDC(s) 

· Number of doses 

· Expiration dates 

· Your POB project officer posts your solicitation to the all-grantee mailbox. 

· Recipient grantee contacts you directly to arrange specifics. 

· You send an email with the subject heading "Request to transfer virtual inventory doses to another grantee" to cdccustomerservice@mckesson.com and cc the recipient grantee stating: "Please transfer “X” doses of NDC “Y” with the expiration date of “ABC” from my virtual inventory into the virtual inventory of Grantee “Z”." 
· McKesson Specialty Customer Care replies to both the donor and recipient grantees when the transfer is complete, so that the recipient grantee knows when it is possible to place individual provider orders for the product(s). 

· Changes to the donor’s and recipient grantee’s virtual inventory appear on the Grantee-Specific Inventory Report. 

Please note that doses of PPV23 for use in high-risk children must be purchased outside the federal contract using state and/or 317-FA funds. Although this vaccine is intended to be part of your virtual inventory, it will not be stored as virtual inventory because it exists on federal contract. Therefore, these doses will not be included on your Grantee-Specific Inventory Report.  Because PPV23 is part of the federal operating inventory, it is not necessary for you to monitor the expiration dates because first-expired-first-out policy is observed on federally contracted vaccines.
If you have any questions about the procedure to transfer virtual inventory doses, please contact Sally Somerfeldt zfe0@cdc.gov.

This document can be found on the CDC website at:
http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/programs/vmbip/downloads/proc-trans-vdgvi-508.doc 
